
  

 
 
 
Date: 06th September, 2025 
 
To,  
The Manager  
Listing Department  
BSE Limited  
P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,  
Fort, Mumbai-400001 
 
Scrip Code: 544169 
 
Sub.: Notice	convening	18th	Annual	General	Meeting	along	with	the	Annual	Report	for	the	
financial	year	2024‐25.	 

 
Ref: Regulation 30 and 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 30 and Regulation 34(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed the 
following documents, which are being sent to the shareholders of the Company through 
electronic mode. 
 
1. Notice of the 18th Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Monday, 
29th September, 2025 at 12.00 p.m. at through VC/other Audio Visual Means; and 
 
2. The Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. 
 
Kindly take the above on record and acknowledge the receipt of the same. 
 
Thanking You 
 
Yours Faithfully 
 
For	Amkay	Products	Limited	
	
	
	
____________________________	
Kashyap	Pravin	Mody	
Managing	Director	
DIN:	01717036	
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About the Annual Report 

As always, this annual report has been carefully put together to provide the 
community with highlights on how we are going about integrated management in and 
provides a brief overview of what we have been up to over the reporting period. It 
seeks to improve stakeholders' understanding of our present business position and 
future sustainability prospects. 

In line with the Companies Act, 2013, relevant rules, Accounting Standards, and the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we've ensured that all financial and statutory 

information in this report is accurate and compliant. This demonstrates our 

dedication to creating value for all our stakeholders. Through this report, we want to 

share the steps we've taken and the outcomes we've achieved in our financial, 

environmental, and societal efforts. 

 

Covering the period from April 1, 2024, to March 31, 2025, this report provides 

straight forward and clear insights, both quantitative and qualitative. It highlights our 

initiatives to create value for stakeholders and addresses the risks, opportunities, and 

strategies we've employed in response to an ever-changing external environment. 

 

We're proud to present the 18th Annual Report of Amkay Products Limited (APL), 

offering a thorough overview of our financial and non-financial performance for the 

fiscal year 2024-25. 
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Manufacturing Footprint 

 

 
Manufacturing Unit-I at Amkay House, Plot No. 27, Achhad Industrial Estate, 

Village-Achhad, Taluka- Talasari, Dist. Palghar, Thane- 401606, Maharashtra. 

 

 
 

Manufacturing Unit-II at Plot No. 39, Achhad Industrial Estate, Village-Achhad, 

Taluka- Talasari, Dist. Palghar, Thane- 401606, Maharashtra 
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Product categories 

 

       Thermometer            Nebulizer 

                    
 

 

 

              BP Monitor     Auto Lancet 
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Alcohol swab      Hot Water Bag 
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From the desk of the Managing Director  
 

Dear Shareholders, 

Namaskar! 

 

I hope this letter finds you in good health and high spirits. As we 

gather here to reflect on the financial year 2024-25, I would like 

to take this opportunity to share with you some insights regarding 

the performance of our company and the prevailing conditions in 

the healthcare industry. 

 

The year 2024-25 was a landmark one for Amkay. We were faced 

with an economy and external environment which were in a state 

of flux, battling inconsistent demand patterns and geopolitical 

uncertainties. We, however, stood out with grace and resilience 

and stuck to what we do best: following the principles of 

precision, trust, and consistency in all our activities and operations. This integration 

is not merely a superficial exercise for us; it is the architect of how we manufacture, 

and serve our customers and the community at large. 

 

Driving “Make in India” Excellence 

A core part of our strategy is to manufacture a comprehensive range of products 

within India in collaboration with global technology leaders. By engaging experienced 

professionals and working closely with international partners, we aim to reduce 

dependency on imports, strengthen India’s healthcare infrastructure, and make 

advanced medical equipment more accessible and affordable. 

 

We are energised by the thought of a considerably huge runway ahead. Being one of 

the most trusted brands in the home healthcare space, we are working towards 

garnering the largest share of the opportunity pie. 

 

While we are working to grow our presence in the present market. We are 

strengthening our existing relationships with distributors and retailers to improve 

product visibility and market reach. Additionally, we are expanding our reach. With 

demand mushrooming across the Indian landmass, we are focused on onboarding 

new distributors, particularly in untapped regions.  

 

The path ahead is both exciting and challenging. Our goal is to deliver a complete 

“Made in India” range of quality medical products in collaboration with high-tech 

global companies, ensuring that our offerings meet the highest standards of safety, 
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efficiency, and reliability. We remain dedicated to innovation, ethical practices, and 

the well-being of patients worldwide. I am proud of our team’s resilience, adaptability, 

and shared passion for excellence. With our expanding network, growing 

manufacturing capabilities, and unwavering vision, Amkay Products Limited is well-

positioned to lead the way in transforming global healthcare delivery. To all our 

stakeholders — employees, partners, distributors, doctors, and investors.  

 

In conclusion, I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders and 

all other stakeholders for their unwavering support and trust. Despite numerous 

domestic, international, and geopolitical challenges, our company's performance in 

the financial year 2024-25 reflects our collective efforts and commitment. I would also 

like to acknowledge our employees' dedication and hard work, which have been 

instrumental in our success. 

 

With your continued support and our unwavering dedication, we are confident that 

we will overcome challenges, capitalize on opportunities, and drive sustained growth 

in the coming years. 

 

Thank you once again for your valuable investment and belief in the company. 

 

Warm regards, 

Kashyap Pravin Mody 

Chairman and Managing Director 
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 

Global economic overview and outlook: 

 

The medical device industry is a diverse and dynamic sector. This dynamic nature of 

the sector stems from continuous technological advancements, evolving healthcare 

needs, and stringent regulatory frameworks that drive constant innovation. The 

global market for medical devices is extensive and projected to exhibit substantial 

growth in the coming years. The market was valued at USD 542.21 billion in 2024 and 

is projected to grow significantly over the next several years. By 2032, the market is 

expected to reach USD 883.96 billion, reflecting a compound annual growth rate 

(CAGR) of 6.3%. As the medical device industry continues to grow, its growth is not 

only driven by technological innovation but also by increasing global healthcare 

demands and policy support. With a strong focus on research, localization, and 

strategic collaborations, the sector is poised to enhance accessibility, affordability, 

and quality of care across the world. This upward trajectory highlights the industry’s 

vital role in shaping the future of healthcare, ensuring better patient outcomes, and 

fostering economic development. 

 

Medical device firms are many a times operating in clusters. This is necessitated due 

to the various cross-functional support required by the units, including the presence 

of hospitals and doctors for conceptualizing and testing and quality raw materials. 

USA has over ten clusters. Europe too has a number of medical device clusters in 

Germany Netherlands, France, Italy, Switzerland, etc. India has over ten clusters. 

Medical devices clusters are also present in Japan, China, South Korea, Brazil, Australia 

etc. 

 

Indian Economy Overview and Outlook: 

 

The Indian medical device market, currently valued at USD 15.33 billion, is on a strong 

growth trajectory and is projected to reach approximately USD 50 billion over the next 

decade. This remarkable expansion is driven by multiple converging factors, including 

rising healthcare expenditure, increased access to healthcare services, rapid 

technological advancements, and growing demand for high-quality, affordable 

medical solutions. Additionally, government-led initiatives such as ‘Make in India’ and 

the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme are playing a pivotal role in fostering 

self-reliance by incentivizing domestic manufacturing and reducing dependency on 

imports. As a result, India is emerging as a global hub for medical device innovation 

and production. 
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India is undergoing a transformative shift in its MedTech landscape, with a strong 

focus on expanding its presence in global markets. The country is steadily emerging 

as a key exporter of high-quality, affordable medical devices, backed by robust 

manufacturing capabilities and a skilled workforce. In FY 2024-25, India’s medical 

device exports reached USD 4,018 million, reflecting growing international confidence 

in Indian-made solutions. This momentum is being fuelled by supportive government 

policies, such as the Production Linked Incentive (PLI), medical devices parks, the new 

medical devices scheme and strengthening of export promotion councils, which are 

enabling Indian manufacturers to scale, innovate, and meet global regulatory 

standards. As the ecosystem matures, India is well-positioned to evolve from a rising 

player to a global MedTech export powerhouse. 

 

STRENGTH 

• We offer a diversified range of products. 

• Existing well-established reputation and customer relationships 

• Quality Assurance 

• Stable financial performance with improved margins 

• Experienced management team with industry expertise and successful track record 

COMPETITION: 

We face competition from organized and unorganized players in the healthcare 

industry which have a presence across multiple regions in India. There are various 

companies offering products and services similar to us. We believe the principal 

elements of competition in our industry are price, durability, product quality, timely 

delivery and reliability and most importantly our pace in keeping up with the 

changing technology in the industry. 

To stay competitive, we regularly update our existing facilities/technology and adopt 

new technology for our manufacturing facilities. We aim to keep our costs of 

production low to maintain our competitive advantage and our profit margins. We 

continuously seek new product registrations, marketing 112 authorizations to 

increase our product offerings. 

Risks and Concerns: 

The Management Discussion and Analysis section primarily consists of statements 

that may include forward-looking predictions based on perceptions and are, as a 

result, subject to potential risks and uncertainties. It encompasses the collective sum 

of the Company's expectations, beliefs, assessments, and projections, which may 

either be forward-looking or pessimistic in accordance with applicable laws and 

regulations. It is important to note that the actual outcomes may significantly differ 
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from those expressed explicitly or implicitly in this context. Shareholders are advised 

to consider this factor in conjunction with the Company's financial statements. 

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy: 

"The Company maintains a robust system of internal financial controls to ensure our 

financial statements are accurate and reliable. This system is designed to optimize 

operations, protect our resources, and ensure timely and precise financial reporting, 

while also ensuring compliance with all applicable procedures, laws, and regulations. 

Our team is dedicated to testing and improving the effectiveness of our internal 

control systems as set by management. Throughout the year, these controls were 

thoroughly tested, and we're pleased to report that no significant weaknesses were 

found. 

Our Audit Committee plays a vital role by reviewing and discussing the findings from 

internal audits in their meetings. They oversee any significant observations and 

ensure that appropriate actions are taken promptly to address any concerns raised." 

 

 



 
AMKAY PRODUCTS LIMITED | Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

 

Introducing APL – Company 
Overview: 
 
Amkay Products Limited (APL), 
established in 2007, is a prominent 
name in the manufacturing of medical 
devices, disposables and other 
Healthcare Products like Face Mask, 
Alcohol Swabs, Lancet Needles, 
Nebulizer, Pulse Oximeter, surgeon 
cap etc. used by healthcare centers, 
hospitals/clinics, nursing homes etc. 
“Amkay” has become a trusted brand in numerous Healthcare Products. Our strong 
relationships with customers and exclusive partnerships in top importing nations, 
such as Bhutan, Nepal and various other developing countries. 
 
At APL, we believe in the power of team building and prefer to grow through an asset-
light model. Our most significant investment is in acquiring top talent. With our 
marketing and branding expertise, our goal is to achieve the highest standards of 
customer satisfaction and loyalty. 
 
VISION: 
“Empowering healthier lives through innovative medical solutions, globally” 
 
MISSION: 
“Our mission is to design, manufacture, and deliver high-quality healthcare devices 
and consumables that improve patient outcomes, enhance healthcare provider 
experiences, and expand access to affordable medical care. We strive to: 
 
- Advance healthcare through innovative technologies and sustainable practices 
- Foster strong partnerships with healthcare professionals, patients, and communities 
- Drive growth through customer-centric solutions and exceptional service 
- Ensure compliance with regulatory standards and maintain the highest ethical     
   Principles 
 
By living our mission, we aim to make a positive impact on the lives of millions, every 
day." 
 
CORE-VALUE: 

At APL, we prioritize the well-being of people and the environment, believing that this 

focus enables us to make a positive impact. We trust in the dedication and capabilities 

of our team, expecting them to fulfil their responsibilities with unwavering 

commitment. 
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Our organization thrives on open and transparent communication, fostering a culture 

of trust and collaboration. By promoting a positive and inclusive environment, we 

build strong bonds and mutual respect among our team members. 

 

Embracing sustainability is integral to our values and provides tangible benefits to our 

business. We believe that integrating sustainability into our operations drive’s 

profitability, revenue growth, enhances our reputation, boosts employee engagement 

and facilitates access to capital. 

 

With a steadfast commitment to responsible business practices, we strive to meet our 

organizational goals while upholding principles of governance, sustainability, and our 

core values. This approach ensures that our actions align with our broader vision of 

creating a sustainable future for all. 

 

At APL, we recognize the interconnectedness of profitability and sustainability. By 

operating with integrity, prioritizing sustainability, and staying true to our core 

values, we are confident in achieving long-term success while positively impacting the 

world. 

Human Capital Management: 

We believe that a company’s most valuable asset is its human resources. Our 

philosophy acknowledges employees as dynamic contributors whose skills, 

dedication, and ingenuity drive the company’s progress and success. We see 

employees not as passive entities but as active agents responsible for the company's 

growth and achievement of strategic goals. 

In line with this belief, we consistently pursue the finest talent available, 

understanding that excellence, innovation, and adaptability are crucial in navigating a 

competitive marketplace. By attracting the best talent, we position ourselves to 

confidently face the complexities of an evolving business landscape. 

Details of Significant Changes in the Key Financial Ratios: 

As per the Schedule V to the Listing Regulations read with Regulation 34(3) of the 

Listing Regulations, details of significant changes (i.e., change of 25% or more as 

compared to the immediately previous financial year) in Key Financial Ratios of the 

Company including explanations therefor have been provided in note no. 40 of the 

Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. 

Cautionary Statement: 

While the statements and views in this report reflect our best judgment, actual future 

results may differ. 
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NOTICE 
Notice is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting of the Members of AMKAY 

PRODUCTS LIMITED (CIN-L51397MH2007PLC175403) will be held on Monday, 

September 29, 2025 at 12.00 p.m. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio 

Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial 

Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports 

of the Board and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To re-appoint Mr. Hemanshu Kantilal Batavia (DIN 05118012), who is liable to 

retire by rotation, being eligible, seek re-appointment in terms of section 152(6) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

SPCIAL BUSINESS: 

3. Appointment of M/s. Pimple and Associates as a Secretarial Auditor for 5 

years from Financial Year 2025-26 to 2029-30. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an ordinary resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 9 of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personal) Rules, 2014 including any amendments thereto for the time 

being in force, M/s. Pimple & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (CP No. 

21773) be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to 

conduct auditing of the secretarial and related records of the company and to furnish 

Secretarial Audit Report for five years from the Financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30 at 

a remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Secretarial Auditor and the 

Board of Directors of the Company.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT anyone Director or Company Secretary of the 

Company, be and is hereby authorised to provide necessary assistance for conducting 

the aforesaid audit.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT anyone Director or Company Secretary of the Company 

of the Company, be and is hereby severally authorised to do all acts, deeds and matters 

and such other things as may be necessary or expedient to implement this resolution.” 
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By the Order of the Board 

SD/- 

Kashyap Pravin Mody 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01717036 

 

Date: September 06, 2024 

Place: Thane 

 

Registered Office Address: 

Amkay Products Limited 

Bunglow No. 68, Rashmi Park Chs Ltd,  

Dhumal Nagar Waliv Road, Tal-Vasai,  

Thane-401208, Maharashtra, India. 
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NOTES 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The voting period begins on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 09.00 A.M. and ends 

on Sunday, 28th September, 2025 at 05.00 P.M. During this period shareholders of 

the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 

the cut-off date (record date) of 21st September, 2025 may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare for voting thereafter. 

 

Book Closure Date: From Monday, 22nd September, 2025 to Monday, 29th September, 

2025 (both days inclusive). 

 
2. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled 

to vote at the meeting venue. 

 

3. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are 
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 
shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the 
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting 
facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and 
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public 
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account 
holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would 
be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 
only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of 
participating in e-voting process. 

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 

1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 

meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given 

below: 
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Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. 1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 

the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, 

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 

under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 

your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 

able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you 

will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

2. 2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 

Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp   

3. 3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 

the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be 

redirected to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

4. For OTP based login you can  

click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. 

You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 

Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 

registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page with all e-Voting Service Providers. Click on 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
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BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-vote (E-voting website) for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting.  

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 

users to login to Easi/Easiest is 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login or visit CDSL 

website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 

per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of BIGSHARE the e-

Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there 

is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers i.e. BIGSHARE, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 

providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration   

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link 

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 

be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress, and 

also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-voting period. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
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Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, 

you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name 

or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 

technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33 
 

 

 
2. Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode. 

 
 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com 
 
 Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting Platform. 
 
 Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which is 

shared separately on you register email id. 
 

o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

as user id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID 

followed by 8 Digit Client ID as user id. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number 

registered with the Company as user id. 

 

   Note If you have not received any user id or password, please email from your registered 

email id or contact i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in 

helpdesk section). 

 

 Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login. 

 

 NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting 

system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com and/or voted on an earlier event of any company 

then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

 
 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and then 

Click on ‘Forgot your password’ 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option 

and click on ‘Reset’. (In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be 

sent to his / her registered e-mail address). 

 

Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 

 Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option. 

 Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the right-hand side top corner of the 

page. 

 Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or 

“ABSTAIN” and click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to 

confirm, else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote.  

 Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also 

you will receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting period, members can 

login any number of times till they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution 

is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently. 

 Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” 

option on investor portal. 

 

3. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website: 
 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com   

 Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-

Voting Platform. 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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 Enter all required details and submit. 

 After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password will be 

sent via email on your registered email id”. 

NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then 
they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab and 

further Click on ‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option 

and click on ‘RESET. 

    (In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered 
e-mail address). 

 
 

Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal: 
 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

 

Investor Mapping: 
 

 First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on 

custodian portal. 

o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type power of 

attorney (POA). 

o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) or board 

resolution for respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”. 

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the 

“InvestorID.pdf” (Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.) 

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display. 

Investor vote File Upload: 
 
 To cast your vote, select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on 

custodian portal. 

 Select the Event under dropdown option. 

 Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same 

file under upload document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation message will be 

displayed on the screen and also you can check the file status on display (Once vote on a 

resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently).  

 Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” 

option on custodian portal. 

 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting: 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Shareholder ‘s other than 

individual shareholders holding 

shares in Demat mode & Physical 

mode. 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries 

regarding E-voting, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting module 

available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under 

download section or you can email us to 

ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22. 

 
4. Procedure for joining the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM: 
 
For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & 
physical mode is given below: 
 
 The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  

under Investor login by using the e-voting credentials (i.e., User ID and Password). 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 

 Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM/EGM under the dropdown option. 

 For joining virtual meeting click on the option VOTE NOW on right hand side top corner. 

 For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of “VIDEO 
CONFERENCE LINK” option. 

 Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM are as under: - 

 
 The Members can join the AGM/EGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the 
AGM/EGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.  

 
 Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM 

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
AGM/EGM. 

 
 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 
 

Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting: 
 

 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may refer 
the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
mailto:ivote.bigshareonline.com
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/


 
AMKAY PRODUCTS LIMITED | Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

under download section or you can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 
1800 22 54 22. 

 
 

 

By the Order of the Board 

Sd/- 

Kashyap Pravin Mody 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01717036 

 

Date: September 06, 2025 

Place: Thane 

 

 

Annexure - I to Notice for Annual General Meeting  
Details of Directors Seeking Re-appointment at the forth coming Annual General 

Meeting (Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

Name of Director Mr. Hemanshu Kantilal Batavia 
Date of Birth and Age October 28, 1975,  

50 years 
Brief resume/experience and 
nature of expertise in specific 
functional areas. 

Mr. Hemanshu Kantilal Batavia, Whole Time Director 
of the company is Senior Secondary (12th).  
He has more than 15 years of experience in the 
healthcare sector. 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment /reappointment. 

Retiring by rotation at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible to seek re-
appointment. 
 

Qualification Senior Secondary (12th)  
Number of shares held in the 
Company 

11,51,840  

Names of other companies in 
which the person also holds a 
directorship 

Nil 
 

Number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the year (i.e. F.Y. 
2023-2024). 

6 out of 6 

Membership/ Chairmanship of 
the Committee on the Board of 
other Companies 

Nil 

Disclosure of Relationships 
between directors inter-se and 
with the KMPs. 

Not related to any other Director of the Company 

mailto:ivote.bigshareonline.com
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BOARD’S REPORT 
 

To  

The Members 

Amkay Products Limited 

Your directors have the pleasure to present the 18th Annual Report on the business and 

operations of your Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 

March 31, 2025. 

 

Financial Results 

 

The Financial Results of the Company’s performance for the year under review and those of 

the previous year are as follows: - 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

  

            

Particulars March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024, 

Income From Operations 3,839.01 3,106.91 

Other Income 131.83 124.92 

Total Income 3,970.84 3,231.83 

Expenses [Except Depreciation 

Expenses] 

3,458.12 2,826.14 

Profit / (Loss) Before Depreciation, 

Amortization and Taxation  

512.72 405.69 

Provision For Depreciation 82.95 55.60 

Profit / (Loss) Before Extra-Ordinary 

Items [Net of Tax Expenses] 

429.77 350.10 

Less: Extra-Ordinary Items  

[Net of Tax Expenses] 

- - 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax  429.77 350.10 

Less: Tax Expenses: -   

Income Tax (Current/Earlier Year) 100.18 80.66 

Deferred Tax  4.25 (6.44) 

   
Profit / (Loss) After Tax  333.85 263.00 

   

Paid-up Share Capital 865.56 636.36 
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COMPANY PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW 

During the year under review, your company reported the revenue from operation amounted 

to Rs. 3839.01 lakh as against Rs. 3106.91 lakh during the previous financial year 2023-24. 

The Net Profit of your Company, for the year amounted to Rs. 333.85 lakh as against Rs. 263.00 

lakh during the previous financial year 2023-24. 

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER  

The Directors are pleased to inform that the Company’s Initial Public Offering (IPO) of 

22,92,000 Equity Shares of face value of 10/- (Rupees Ten only) by way of Fixed Price Process 

received an overwhelming response from the investors. The Issue was opened on April 30, 

2024 and closed on May 03, 2024. The trading of Equity Shares of the Company commenced 

on SME Platform of BSE from May 08, 2024. 

The success of IPO reflects the trust, faith and confidence that customers, business partners 

and markets have reposed in your Company. 

Utilization of IPO Fund: 

The Initial Public Offer fund has been utilizing for the purpose for which it is raised as 

mentioned in the Prospectus. 

STATE OF AFFAIRS 

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture, assemble & market a comprehensive 

portfolio of medical devices, disposables and other Healthcare Products. There is no change 

in the business of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2025.  

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN 

THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT 

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of 

the Company, that have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial 

statements relate and the date of this report. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE  

The Company has transferred Rs. 333.85 lakh to the Reserves for the year ended March 31, 

2025. 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

The Authorised Share Capital of the company as on March 31, 2025, was Rs. 900.00 Lakh 

divided into 90,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.  

The paid-up equity shares capital of the company stood at Rs. 865.56 Lakh consisting of 

8,65,56,400 equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 

During the year under review, the Company has issued/allotted 22,92,000 equity shares 

through initial Public Offer (IPO). 

SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATES 

The company has no Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associates Company. 
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EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As required under Section 134(3)(a) & Section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual Return is put up 

on the Company’s website and can be accessed at www.amkayproducts.com & Extracts of 

the Annual Return in form MGT 9 for the Financial Year 2024-25 is uploaded on the website 

of the Company and can be accessed at www.amkayproducts.com.  

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that: 

In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standard have been followed 

along with proper explanations relating to material departures. 

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reason-able and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year March 31, 2025, and the 

Profit or Loss of the Company for the period; 

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and preventing and detecting fraud. 

 The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year Ended March 31, 

2025, on a going concern basis. 

the Directors had laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 form part of the notes to the standalone financial statements forming a part of this 

Annual Report.  

FIXED DEPOSITS 

According to Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not invited/ accepted 

any deposits from the public during the year ended March 31, 2025. Hence, there were no 

unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on March 31, 2025. 

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 

During the year under review, the provision of section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 

does not apply as the company was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor 

Education Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government of India. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY 

Your Company has an adequate and effective Internal Control Mechanism in place which is 

commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations, to ensure efficient 

conduct of its operations, security of assets, prevention and detection of frauds/errors, 

http://www.amkayproducts.com/
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accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information as per its Management Information System (MIS). These controls have 

been designed to provide reasonable assurance about maintaining proper accounting 

controls for ensuring the reliability of financial reporting, monitoring of operations and 

protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, and compliance with regulations. The 

Company has continued its efforts to align all its processes and controls with global best 

practices. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The composition of the Board consists of the following persons: 

Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr. Kashyap Pravin Mody    - Chairman and Managing Director 
Mr. Hemanshu Kantilal Batavia     - Whole-time director and Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Krishna Rathi - Company Secretary and Compliance officer 

 

Non-Executive, Independent Directors 

Mr. Gaurav Maheshwari 

Mrs. Anamika Ajmera 

 

Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors 

Mr. Ajay Somabhai Mehta 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s Articles of 

Association, Mr. Kashyap Pravin Mody, Managing Director of the Company, retires by rotation 

at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible offer for re-

appointment. 

The above re-appointment form part of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard-1 issued by the Council of the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government. During the year, 12 

(Twelve) Board Meetings were held on the following dates: 

(i) April 22, 2024 (ii) September 05, 2024 
(iii) April 23, 2024 
(v) May 29, 2024 
 

(iv) November 11, 2024 
(vi) February 10, 2025 
 

The composition of the Board and the attendance details of the Members are given below: 

Name of the Directors Category No. of Meetings 
Held Attended 

Mr. Kashyap Pravin Mody Chairman & Managing 
Director  

6 6 

Mr. Hemanshu Kantilal 
Batavia 

Whole-time director & 
CFO 

6 6 



 
AMKAY PRODUCTS LIMITED | Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

Mr. Ajay Somabhai Mehta Non-Executive,  
Non-Independent 
Director 

6 6 

Mr. Gaurav Maheshwari Non-Executive,  
Independent Director 

6 6 

Mrs. Anamika Ajmera Non-Executive,  
Independent Director 

6 5 

 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence 

as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Grievance Redressal Mechanism [Sebi Complaints Redress System (SCORES)]: 
The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system. 

The salient features of this system are the centralized database of all complaints, online 

upload of Action Taken Reports\(ATRs) by the concerned companies and online viewing by 

investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. Your Company has been 

registered on SCORES and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints received 

through SCORES or otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the 

complaint. The Company had received one complaint on the SCORES during the financial year 

2024-25 and the same was resolved in the prescribed timeline. 

AUDITORS’ AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 
Statutory Auditors 
M/s. R.K. Jagetiya & Co., Chartered Accountant was appointed as the statutory auditor of the 

company.  

The Audit Report on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on March 31 2025, 

issued by M/s. R.K. Jagetiya & Co., Chartered Accountants, is unmodified and auditor’s remark 

is as follows: 

S. No. Statutory Auditor’s Remark Director’s Explanation 
1. Quantitative, item-wise records of opening 

Inventory, consumption of raw material, 
WIP and closing Inventory which were not 
recorded in the software therefore the 
audit trail (edit log) facility cannot be 
verified by us in with respect to such 
inventory data: 

The Company has already initiated a 
software to manage the inventory 
and it is successfully maintaining all 
the records. 

 

The information referred to in Auditor’s Report is self-explanatory and hence does not require 

any further clarification. 

The first proviso to section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been omitted vide section 

40 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on May 07, 2018. Therefore, it is not 

mandatory for the Company to place the matter relating to the appointment of a statutory 

auditor for ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting. Hence the Company has 

not included the ratification of statutory auditors in the Notice of AGM. 
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During the Year under review, the Auditors have not reported any matter under Section 143 

(12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of 

the Act. 

Internal Auditor  
The Board has appointed M/s.  Soni Punit & Associates Chartered Accountants, as Internal 

Auditor to conduct an Internal Audit functions and activities of the company for the Financial 

Year 2025-26. 

Secretarial Audit 
The Board has appointed M/s. Pimple & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries for 5 

(Five) consecutive Financial Year from 2025-26 to 2029-30, to carry out the Secretarial Audit 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith 

and marked as Annexure – ‘I’ to this Report. 

Cost Records & Audit 
Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions 

of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the business activities 

carried out by the Company. 

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors 
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, has not reported any instances of fraud 

committed in the Company by its officers or employees under Section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

Committees of the Board 
The Company has constituted different Committees under the Board that are mandated under 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

[I] Mandatory Committees 

(a) Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors oversees the Financial Statements and 

Financial Reporting before submission to the Board.  

The Audit Committee is responsible for the recommendation of the appointment, 

remuneration, performance and oversight of the Internal and Statutory Auditors. It reviews 

the Reports of the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors. The Senior Management 

Personnel are invited to the meetings of the Audit Committee, along with the Head of Internal 

Audit. 

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times to deliberate on 

various matters. The Meetings were held on 29th May, 2024, September 05, 2024, November 

29, 2024, and February 10, 2025. 

The composition of the Committee and the attendance details of the Members are given 

below: 

 



 
AMKAY PRODUCTS LIMITED | Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

Name of the Directors Category No. of Meetings 
Held Attended 

Anamika Ajmera Chairperson, Non-
Executive, Independent 
Director 

4 3 

Gaurav Maheshwari Member, Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 

4 4 

Kashyap Pravin Mody Member, Chairman & 
Managing Director  

4 4 

       

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Your Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The functions of this 

Committee include identification of persons who are qualified to become Directors and who 

may be appointed as Senior Management, formulation of criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes, independence, recommendations of their appointments to 

the Board, evaluation of every Director’s performance, formulation of Remuneration Policy to 

include recommendation of remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 

Management. 

At present, there are 3 (Three) Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in 

which two are Non-Executive & Independent Directors and one is Non-Executive & Non-

Independent Director. 

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met once to 

deliberate on various matters. The Meeting was held on February 10, 2025. 

The composition Committee and the attendance details of the Members are given below: 

Name of the Directors Category No. of Meetings 
Held Attended 

Anamika Ajmera Chairperson, Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 

1 1 

Gaurav Maheshwari Non-Executive, Independent 
Director 

1 1 

Ajay Somabhai Mehta  Non-Executive, Non-
Independent Director 

1 1 

 

Remuneration Policy, Details of Remuneration and Other Terms of Appointment of 

Directors. 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

framed a Policy for Selection and Appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their 

remuneration. This Policy inter-alia includes: 

(i) Criteria of Selection of Non-Executive Directors  

- Non-Executive Directors will be selected on the basis of Identification of Industry / 

subject leaders with strong experience. The advisory area and therefore the role may 

be defined for each independent director. 



 
AMKAY PRODUCTS LIMITED | Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

- The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure that the Candidate 

identified for Appointment as a Director is not disqualified for Appointment under 

Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

- In case of Appointment of Independent Directors, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the independent nature of the Directors 

vis–a–vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its function and duties 

effectively. 

(ii) Remuneration  

- Pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Approval of the Board of Directors, Independent Directors are entitled to sitting fees for 

attending Board Meetings and Committee Meetings within the overall limits prescribed 

under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, In addition, Independent Directors shall be 

entitled to receive reimbursement of expenses for participation in the 
Board/Committee Meetings. 

(c) Stakeholders Relationship and Grievance Committee 

Your Company has reconstituted the Stakeholders Relationship and Grievance Committee of 

the Company pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 which comprises of 4 (Four) 

Directors out of which Two are Non-executive Independent Directors and Two are Managing 

Directors of the Company. The committee is headed by Ms. Anamika Ajmera. 

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship and Grievance Committee met 

once on February 10, 2025, in order to take on note the Share Transfer / Transmission / 

Demat of Shares / Sub-Division as intimated by the RTA of the Company. 

The composition of the Share Transfer and Stakeholders Relationship Committee is given 

below: 

Name of the Directors Category 

No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Anamika Ajmera Chairperson, Non-
Executive, Independent 
Director 

1 1 

Kashyap Pravin Mody Member, Chairman & 
Managing Director  

1 1 

Hemanshu Kantilal Batavia Member, Wholetime 
Director & CFO 

1 1 

 

Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism  

The Company has a robust vigil mechanism through its Whistle Blower Policy approved and 

adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in compliance with the provisions of 

Section 177 (10) of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations. 

The Policy provides protection to the directors, employees and business associates who 

report unethical practices and irregularities. 
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Any incidents that are reported are investigated and suitable action is taken in line with the 

Whistle Blower Policy. However, no complaint of this nature has been received by the Audit 

Committee during the Fiscal year 2025. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company can be 

accessed at the website of the Company at www.amkayproducts.com. 

Risk Management Policy 

The Management has put in place adequate and effective system and manpower for the 

purposes of risk management. In the opinion of the Board, following would threaten the 

existence risk of the Company: 

Staying one step ahead of risk 

The Company has laid down a well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk 

mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact, and risk mitigation process. A 

detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, manage and monitoring of both 

business and non-business risks. 

APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 

BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

During the year, no application was made or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against the Company. 

ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN 

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has 

adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the 

workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. Internal 

Complaints Committee (ICC) has been constituted to consider & redress all sexual harassment 

complaints. The Company is committed to providing equal opportunities without regard to 

race, caste, sex, religion, colour, nationality, disability, etc. All women associate (permanent, 

temporary, contractual and trainees) as well as any women visiting the Company’s office 

premises or women service providers are covered under this Policy. All employees are treated 

with dignity with a view to maintaining a work environment free of sexual harassment 

whether physical, verbal or psychological. 

During Fiscal year 2025, the Company has not received any complaints of sexual harassment. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

The particulars of Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption as required under 

Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 are not applicable to the Company. 

 

 

http://www.amkayproducts.com/
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS OUTGO 

During the period under review, there was Rs. 13.01 lakhs Foreign Exchange Earnings and 

there is no Expenditure in Foreign Currency. 

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The Disclosures with respect to the Remuneration of Directors and Employees as required 

under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 along with, a 

statement containing particulars of Employees as required under Section 197 of Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure – “II” and 

form part of this report. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

All related party transactions are entered on an arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of 

business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with 

Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have 

a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Accordingly, no transactions are 

being reported in Form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, the details of the transactions with the Related 

Party are provided in the Company’s financial statements in accordance with the Accounting 

Standards. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness 

in the design or operation was observed. The internal financial control of the company is 

adequate to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

safeguarding of the assets, and that the business is conducted in an orderly and efficient 

manner. 

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM 

As the Members are aware, your Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in Electronic 

Form and the Company has established connectivity with both the Depositories in the Country 

i.e., NSDL and CDSL. In view of the various advantages offered by the Depository System, 

Members are requested to avail of the facility of dematerialization of the Company’s shares 

on either of the aforesaid Depositories. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct, which is applicable to the Members 

of the Board and all Employees in the course of day-to-day business operations of the 

Company.  
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Directors state that the applicable secretarial standards i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 

‘Meeting of the Board of Directors’ and ‘Meeting of General Meeting, respectively, have been 

duly followed by the Company. 

LISTING OF SHARES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE 

The Company’s equity shares are listed on SME Platform of the Bombay Stock Exchange. 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT (BRSR) 

The Business Responsibility & Sustainability Reporting as required by regulation 34(2) (f) of 

the SEBI (listing obligations and disclosure requirement) regulations, 2015 is not applicable 

to the company for the financial year ending, March 31, 2025. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance and 

transparency. We ensure that we evolve & follow the corporate governance guidelines & best 

practices sincerely to boost long-term shareholder value legally, ethically & sustainably. We 

consider it an inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding 

its operations and performance. We also endeavour to maximize shareholders’ value and 

respect minority rights in all our business decisions. 

During year, our company is Listed on SME Platform of the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), by 

virtue of Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 the compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as specified in 

regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and 

Para C, D and E of Schedule V is not applicable to the company. 

EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

In an ever-changing and fast-paced corporate world, training and development is an 

indispensable function and management of Amkay believes that training presents a prime 

opportunity to expand the knowledge base of all employees. A structured training and 

development program is organized for employees to have consistent experience and 

background knowledge. We encourage a culture of continual learning among employees 

through various Training & development sessions within the organization. Amkay team 

always focus on producing targeted and tangible results for the business, treating it seriously 

and considering it a capital investment and making it results-driven. The results from our 

training and development initiatives have been very positive and clearly presented the 

enhanced productivity, efficiency & effectiveness. 

BOARD POLICIES 

We seek to promote and follow the highest level of ethical standards in all our business 

transactions guided by our value system. The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 mandate the formulation of certain policies 

for all listed companies. The Corporate Governance policies are available on the Company’s 

website, at www.amkayproducts.com The policies are reviewed periodically by the board and 

updated as needed. 

http://www.amkayproducts.com/
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

During the period under review, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the 

Company.  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION 

Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements formulated by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the CEO/CFO certification is not applicable to 

your Company as it is an SME Listed Entity. 

GREEN INITIATIVE 

The MCA had undertaken the Green Initiative in Corporate Governance by allowing paperless 

compliances by companies through electronic mode. We request all the shareholders to 

support the ‘Green Initiative’ of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Company’s 

continuance towards greener environment by enabling the service of the Annual Report, AGM 

Notice and other documents electronically to your email address registered with your 

Depository Participant/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. The Company appeals to you, its 

Shareholders, who are yet to register the E-mail addresses that they take necessary steps for 

registering the same so that you can also become a part of the initiative and contribute 

towards a greener environment. 

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMER FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: 

The Company proactively keeps its directors informed of the activities of the Company, its 
Management and operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as issues 

being faced by the industry. 

BOARD EVALUATION: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the performance evaluation of the chairman 

and Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors in their 

separate Meeting also reviewed the performance of the Board as whole. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria and 

procedure for the performance evaluation of the Board of Directors 

The Board's functioning was evaluated on various aspects, including inter alia degree of 

fulfilment of key responsibilities, Board structure and Composition, effectiveness of Board 

process, information and functioning. 

The Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance and contribution at Board/ 

Committee Meetings and guidance /support to the Management outside Board/Committee 

Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on key aspects of his role, including 

setting the strategic agenda of the Board and encouraging active engagement of all Board 

Members. 

Evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the director 

being evaluated. 
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PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 

The board of Directors has adopted the Insider Trading Policy in accordance with the 

requirement of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulation, 2015. The Insider Trading Policy of the Company lays down guidelines and 

procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the 

Company as well as consequences of violation. The Policy has been formulated to regulate, 

monitor and ensure the reporting of deals by employees and to maintain the highest ethical 

standard of dealing in the Company’s Shares. 

The insider trading Policy of the Company covering the code of practices and procedures for 

fair disclosures of unpublished price-sensitive information and the code of conduct for the 

prevention of Insider Trading is available on the website: www.amkayproducts.com. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

a. The Company does not have any scheme or provision of money for the purchase of its own 

shares by employees/ Directors or by trustees for the benefit of employees/ Directors; 

b. The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or 

otherwise; 

c. The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares/ESOP/ RSUs to its directors or 

employees; and 

d. There was no revision of financial statements and the Board’s report of the Company 
during the year under review. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your directors wish to thank the Shareholders, Clients, Bankers and Stakeholders at large for 

their continued support during the year. Your directors also wish to place on record their 
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

Amkay Products Limited 

 

SD/- 

Kashyap Pravin Mody 

Chairman & Managing Director  

DIN: 01717036 

 

Dated: September 06, 2025 

Place: Thane 
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ANNEXURE – I 

 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Amkay Products Limited 

Bunglow No. 68, Rashmi Park Chs Ltd,  

Dhumal Nagar Waliv Road, Tal-Vasai,  

Thane-401208, Maharashtra, India 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Amkay Products 

Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws 

and maintenance of records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in 

accordance with the applicable Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India. The Auditing Standards requires that the Auditor shall 

comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and 

maintenance of records. 

 

Due to the inherent limitations of audit including internal, financial and operating 

controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or material 

non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and 

performed in accordance with the Standards.” 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 

the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
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has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 

(hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 

according to the provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment. 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositaries and Participants) 

Regulations, 2018;  

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

 

f. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021. Not Applicable during the year under review. 

 



 
AMKAY PRODUCTS LIMITED | Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the year under review. 

 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client to the extent of securities issued;  

 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the year under review. 

 

j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018; Not Applicable during the period under review. 

 

(vi) As confirmed by the management, there are no sector/Industry-specific laws that are 

applicable specifically to the company. 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 

 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the 

Act, Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Notifications, Directions, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 

mentioned above: 

 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 

proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 

Directors. There is no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the 

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent in compliance with the provisions of the Act and 

Rules made thereunder and Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings, and a system 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 

items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

 

During the period under review, decisions were carried out with unanimous approval 

of the Board and no dissenting views were observed, while reviewing the minutes. 

 



 
AMKAY PRODUCTS LIMITED | Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, circulars, notifications, directions 

and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the audit period the Company has not undertaken any 

event/action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the 

above referred laws, acts, rules, regulations, circulars, notifications, directions, 

guidelines, standards: 

 

 

For Pimple & Associates 

Practising Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Rohini Janardan Pimple  

C.P. No: 21773  

Membership No: - A51452 

UDIN: A051452G001192625 

 

Place: Mumbai      

Date: 06/09/2025 
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Annexure-I of MR-3 

 

To,  

The Members, 

Amkay Products Limited 

Bunglow No. 68, Rashmi Park Chs Ltd,  

Dhumal Nagar Waliv Road, Tal-Vasai,  

Thane-401208, Maharashtra, India 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based 

on my audit.  

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 

verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial 

records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis 

for my opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company.  

 
4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management’s representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 
5. The compliance of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification 

of the procedures on test basis.  

 
6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company. 

 

For Pimple & Associates 

Practising Company Secretaries 

 

 

Rohini Janardan Pimple  

C.P. No: 21773  

Membership No: - A51452 

UDIN: A051452G001192625 
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ANNEXURE – II 

PARTICULARS OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 

Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 

A. Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the Median remuneration of the employees 

of the Company for the F Y 2024-25 as well as the percentage increase in remuneration 

of each Director: 

 

B. Percentage increase in median remuneration in the FY 2024-25: 5.43% 

 

C. Number of Permanent employees on the role of the Company as on 31/03/2025: 113 

 

D.  

Particulars 
% Change in 
Remuneration* 

Average percentile increases in Salary of employees other 
than managerial personnel 

37.72% 

Average percentile increases in remuneration of managerial 
personnel 

25% 

 

E. Affirmations: It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the directors, key managerial 

personnel, and other employees is per the Company’s Remuneration Policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Director Remuneration 
(in lakhs) 

% Change in 
Remuneration 

over the 
previous year* 

Ratio of remuneration 
of each Director to 
whom remuneration is 
paid to the median 
remuneration of 
employees 

Executive Director    
Mr.  Kashyap Pravin Mody 
(Chairman and Managing Director) 

11.75 33.33% 1:653.73 

Mr.  Hemanshu Kantilal Batavia 
(Whole-time director and CFO) 

10.20 - 1:567 
 

Key Managerial Personnel    
Ms.  Krishna Rathi  
(Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer) 

3.84 68.96% 1:214 
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ANNEXURE – III 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members 

Amkay Products Limited 

Bunglow No. 68, Rashmi Park Chs Ltd,  

Dhumal Nagar Waliv Road, Tal-Vasai,  

Thane-401208, Maharashtra, India 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns, and disclosures received from 

the Directors of Amkay Products Limited having CIN: L51397MH2007PLC175403 and 

having registered office at Bunglow No. 68, Rashmi Park Chs Ltd, Dhumal Nagar Waliv Road, 

Tal-Vasai Thane-401208, Maharashtra, India. (Hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), 

produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 

with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015.  

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 

necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify 

that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year 

ending on 31st March 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director  DIN  Date of 

Appointment in 

Company at current 

designation 

1. Mr. Kashyap Pravin Mody 01717036 25/10/2007 

2. Mr. Hemanshu Kantilal Batavia 05118012 28/08/2023 

3. Mr. Anamika Ajmera 09748907 28/08/2023 

4. Mr. Gaurav Maheshwari  10252288 28/08/2023 

5. Mr. Ajay Somabhai Mehta 06892345 26/06/2023 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is 

the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 

future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

http://www.mca.gov.in/
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For Pimple & Associates 

Practising Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Rohini Janardan Pimple  

C.P. No: 21773  

Membership No: - A51452 

UDIN: A051452G001192713 

 

Place: Mumbai      

Date: 06/09/2025 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

To The Members of 

Amkay Products Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Amkay Products Limited (“the Company”) which 

comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, the statement of profit and loss, statement 

of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 

summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 

(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 

at 31 March 2025, and profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 

our opinion thereon. We state that there is no Key Audit matter to report. 

 

Other Information  

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s 

annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
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otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 

section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that 

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and cash flows of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 

assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 

Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so.  

 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 

Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of 

Directors. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going 

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 

in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 

A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 

applicable. 

 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as appears from our examination of those books. 

 

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and statement of cash flows dealt with 

by this report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act. 

 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31 

March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.  

 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate report in “Annexure B”. 

 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position.; 

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced 

or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received 

by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company 

shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
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Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 

believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 

under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, performed by us on the Company, 

except for the instances mentioned below, have used accounting software for 

maintaining their respective books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 

operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and 

additionally those edit log were preserved by the Company as per the Statutory 

requirement for record retentions except quantitative, item-wise records of 

opening Inventory, consumption of raw material, WIP and closing Inventory 

which were not recorded in the software therefore the audit trail (edit log) facility 

cannot be verified by us in with respect to such inventory data: 

 

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the 

Act: 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 

was not applicable to the Company during the year under audit. 

 

For R K Jagetiya & Co 

       Chartered Accountants 

       (Firm Reg. No.146264W) 

 

       SD/- 

 

       CA Ravi K Jagetiya 

Place: Mumbai     Proprietor 

Date: 23rd May, 2025     Membership No.: 134691 

       UDIN: 25134691BMGTEJ1575 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statement 

of Amkay Products Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 

 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report of even date) 

 

i. In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment: 

 

(a) The company has maintained memorandum of records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment. 

 

(b) As explained to us, Property, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the 

Management at reasonable intervals in accordance with the regular program of 

verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the Property, 

Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation 

given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the company, Company has satisfactory title of immovable 

property as disclosed in financial statement. 

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of records of the Company, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant 

and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during the year and;  

 

(e)  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending 

against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder; 

 

ii. (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our 

opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and the coverage and procedures as 

followed by management were appropriate; According to the information and explanations 

given to us and as examined by us, no discrepancies were noticed on such verification 

between the physical stocks and book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for 

each class of inventory. 

 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5.00 crore, 

therefore the reporting requirement under this clause is not applicable to the Company. 

 

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of records of the Company, the company has not made any investments, not provided any 

guarantee or security and not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured 

or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties 

therefore reporting under clause 3(iii) sub clause (a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable, 
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iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has not 

granted loans, not made any investments, guarantees, and security in contravention with the 

provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. 

Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

vi. The requirement to maintain the cost records and cost audit pursuant to the rules made by 

the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to 

the Company, therefore this clause is not applicable. 

 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of 

account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state 

insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of 

excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly 

deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities.  

 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, 

goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material 

statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from 

the date they became payable. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company 

examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, 

duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on account 

of any dispute 

 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any 

transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments 

under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

 

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, as also on the basis of the books 

and records examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial 

institutions or banks or any lenders.  

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not declared 

wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;  
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(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has taken term loan during the year 

and utilised the same for the same purpose only.  

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 

of the financial statements of the Company, we report that funds raised on short-term basis 

have not been utilised for long-term purposes. 

 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company and on an overall examination of the financial 

statements, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or 

to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the company has not raised loans during the year 

on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies;  

 

x. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has raised 22,92,000 no of Equity Shares by way of initial public offer through company listed 

on BSE on 8th May, 2024 aggregating amount of Rs. 1260.60 Lakhs and requirements of section 

42 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used 

for the purposes for which the funds were raised. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential 

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the 

year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

xi. (a) On the basis of books and records of the Company examined by us and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, we report that no material fraud by the Company 

or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year in the course of 

our audit.  

 

(b) During the course of Audit, we have not come across with any fraud case by the 

management or on the management which require report under sub-section (12) of Section 

143 of the Companies Act, 2013, accordingly no such report has been filed by the auditors in 

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 

the Central Government. 

 

(c) Provision of Vigil mechanism as per the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the 

Company, therefore this clause is not applicable to the Company. 

 

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 

not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 
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xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 

the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 

sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been 

disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 

xiv. Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our 

opinion, the Company has internal Audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 

business and the Internal Auditors observations were taken care in financial Statement as 

prepared by the Management of the Company and also have been considered by us. 

 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 

directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

 

xvi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA 

of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clause 

3(xvi)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA 

of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clause 

3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 

by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, 

the Company does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not 

applicable. 

 

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 

 

xviii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 

Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 

that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 

assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 

any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 

date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
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For R K Jagetiya & Co 

       Chartered Accountants 

       (Firm Reg. No.146264W) 

 

       SD/- 

 

       CA Ravi K Jagetiya 

Place: Mumbai     Proprietor 

Date: 23rd May, 2025     Membership No.: 134691 

       UDIN: 25134691BMGTEJ1575 
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’ Report on the Financial Statement of 

Amkay Products Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 

 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ 

section of our report of even date) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 

Amkay Products Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit 

of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of 

the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
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established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements  

 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to 

financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)  pertain  to  the  

maintenance  of  records  that,  in  reasonable  detail,  accurately  and  fairly  reflect  the 

transactions  and  dispositions  of  the  assets  of  the  company;  (2)  provide  reasonable  

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made  only  in  accordance  with  authorizations of  

management  and  directors  of  the company;  and  (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 

the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statements  

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 

reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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For R K Jagetiya & Co 

       Chartered Accountants 

       (Firm Reg. No.146264W) 

 

        SD/- 

 

       CA Ravi K Jagetiya 

Place: Mumbai     Proprietor 

Date: 23rd May, 2025     Membership No.: 134691 

       UDIN: 25134691BMGTEJ1575 
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Note-1  

 

I. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 

The Company was originally incorporated as “Amkay Products Private Limited” on October 

25, 2007 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, 

Maharashtra, Mumbai with CIN U51397MH2007PTC175403. Subsequently, pursuant to 

Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting, held on 

August 02, 2023, the Company was converted into a Public Limited Company and 

consequently the name of our Company was changed from “Amkay Products Private Limited” 

to “Amkay Products Limited” vide a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon 

conversion from private company to public company dated August 28, 2023 issued by the 

Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai bearing CIN L51397MH2007PLC175403. 

 

The Company equity share has been listed on BSE SME stock exchange of India on 08th May, 

2024. 

 

Note -2 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL SATEMENTS 

 

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention and 

evaluated on a going-concern basis using the accrual system of accounting in accordance with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India (Indian GAAP) and the requirements of 

the Companies Act, including the Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014). 

 

2. USE OF ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (GAAP) requires the management of the Company to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating 

to the contingent liabilities, if any, as at the date of the financial statements and reported 

amounts of income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include value 

of value of WIP stock etc. The difference between the actual results and estimates are 

recognized in the period in which results are known or materialized. 

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS 

Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. Cost includes purchase price and all other attributable cost to bring the 

assets to its working condition for the intended use. Property, Plant & Equipment have been 

recorded in the books of the Company at WDV as per Companies Act, 2013.    
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Subsequent expenditures related to Property; Plant & Equipment are added to its book value 

only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed 

standard of performance. 

Assets are capitalized as capital work-in-progress till it is not ready for the intended use. At 

the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of asset is 

transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

commences. 

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial 

recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and any 

accumulated impairment loss. 

Subsequent expenditure, if any, is capitalized only when it increases the future economic 

benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. 

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows: 

Class of Asset Useful life 
Computer software 5 Years 

 

5. DEPRECIATION 

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on 'Written Down Value' based on the useful 

life of the assets and in the manner prescribed in the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

In first year, company has identified assets whose life as been expired according to company 

act, 2013, therefore the WDV of such assets has been written off upto salvage value i.e. 5% of 

original cost of purchase.    

6. BORROWING COSTS 

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection 

with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to 

get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 

7. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. 

An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset 

is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is 

reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of amount. 

8. INVESTMENTS 

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year 

from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All 

other investments are classified as long-term investments.  
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On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase 

price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.  

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value 

determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. 

However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than 

temporary in the value of the investments.  

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal 

proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

9. INVENTORIES 

i) Raw Material, Packaging Material, Tools and Consumables, and Finished Goods are valued 

at lower of Cost or net realizable value.  

ii) Work in Progress at various level is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. The 

Management estimates the work in progress according to stage of completion. Cost of 

inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including 

manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and 

condition. 

10. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

i) Revenue is recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.  

ii) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards are 

transferred as per the terms of sale. Revenues are recorded at invoice value. 

iii) Income in respect of interest, insurance claims, export benefits, subsidy etc. is recognized 

to the extent the company is reasonably certain of its ultimate realization. 

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Defined-contribution plans: 

i) The company does not carry forward the balance of earned leave balance of employees, 

balance earned leave is paid to the employees according to the policy of company.  

ii) Company's contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds for the year is accounted on 

accrual basis and charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year.  

iii) Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity are considered as defined benefit obligations 

and are provided on the basis of the actuarial valuation as at the date of the Balance Sheet. 

12. SEGMENT ACCOUNTING  

Business Segment  

(a) The business segment has been considered as the primary segment.  

(b) The Company’s primary business segments are reflected based on principal business 

activities, the nature of service, the differing risks and returns, the organization structure and 

the internal financial reporting system.  
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(c) The Company’s primary business includes manufacturing and trading of healthcare 

devices and other healthcare consumables and accordingly Segment Disclosure has been 

disclosed. 

13. ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME 

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the 

amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 

enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 

enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.  

(i) Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and 

accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for 

the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or 

substantively enacted at the reporting date.  

(ii) Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets 

are recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable 

certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred 

tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or 

carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty 

supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.  

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The company 

writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer 

reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable 

income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-

down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 

case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available. 

 
14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 

 
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events 
and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. 

 

Contingent Liability is disclosed for 

 

a) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the 

control of the Company or 

 

b) Present obligations arising from the past events where it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the 

obligation cannot be made. 

 

c) Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the 

recognition of income that may never be realized. 

 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 

obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a 



 
AMKAY PRODUCTS LIMITED | Annual Report 2024-25 

 

  

possible obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is 

remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

 

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE: 
 

In determining the Earnings Per share, the company considers the net profit after tax which 
does not include any post tax effect of any extraordinary / exceptional item. The number of 
shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period. Bonus of Equity share and split in face value of equity share of 
company has been considered as if it took place at the beginning of previous reporting period. 
 

16. CASH FLOW: 
 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for 
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing 
or financing cash flows. Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Company are segregated, accordingly. 
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